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VISION
STATEMENT

MISSION
STATEMENT

Enabling the people to live their lives 
healthy, people should eat chicken & 
it should be Big Bird’s Chicken

Big Bird ensures the consistent 
availability of traceable, hygienic, 
healthy & economical chicken meat 
& processed chicken products to 
meet the requirements of our valued 
customers and consumers through 
exercising the competitive edge 
of quality at our integrated poultry 
production facilities. We strive for the 
wellbeing and sustainable growth of 
our valued customers, great people, 
environment and the society.



Big Bird Foods Limited4

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE



5Annual Report 2024

Mr Abdul Basit
Chairman

He is the visionary founder of the Big Bird Group, which includes Big Bird 
Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Limited, Grandparent Poultry (Pvt.) Limited, Big 
Bird Foods Limited, Big Feed (Pvt.) Limited, Pak Tek Associates, Green 
Nature Farms, and APOTHEKE Technologies. Under his leadership, the 
Group has become a leading player in its industry. Mr. Basit also serves 
as Director of several prominent organizations, including Punjab Thermal 
Power Limited, Punjab Agriculture & Meat Company, the Technical 
Education & Vocational Training Authority, Quaid-e-Azam Thermal Power 
Company, Pakistan France Business Alliance, Punjab Halal Development 
Agency, and Pak-France Business Alliance.

In addition to his current roles, Mr. Basit has held several significant 
positions in the past. He was the Chairman of the Punjab Industrial Estate 
Development and Management Company (PIEDMC), South Punjab 
Forest Company, Pakistan Poultry Association, and the Punjab Board of 
Investment and Trade. He also served as a Director of the Punjab Food 
Authority, Punjab Industrial Estate Development Management Company, 
and the Pak Turk Education Foundation. His contributions extend beyond 
business, as he is a member of the Board of Governors of Sheikh Zayed 
Medical Complex, a life member of the SAARC Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, a member of the Syndicate of the University of Veterinary 
and Animal Sciences, President of the Public Health Education Society, 
and President of the Lahore District Anti-Tuberculosis Association.

Mr. Basit’s influence reaches both national and international levels. He 
was a former President of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
and the Vice President of the World Poultry Science Association (Pakistan 
Branch). He represented Pakistan at the Asia Africa Public Private Joint 
Forum and has been part of delegations led by the President of Pakistan 
during state visits to China, and by the Prime Minister of Pakistan to 
Athens, Morocco, Libya, and Egypt in 2006. He also accompanied the 
Chief Minister of Punjab on official tours to Iran in 2008, Turkey in 2009, 
and Dubai in 2010. Additionally, Mr. Basit is a permanent member of the 
Lahore Gymkhana Club and a life member of the Cosmopolitan Club, 
Lahore.
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Dr M. Mustafa Kamal 
Chief Executive Officer

Dr Abdul Karim 
Director

Dr. Mustafa Kamal is the CEO and Executive Director 
of Big Bird Foods Limited, a leading player in Pakistan’s 
poultry and food processing industry. With a strong 
background in management and extensive experience of 
over 45 years in the sector, Dr. Kamal has played a pivotal 
role in driving the company’s growth and innovation, 
ensuring the delivery of high-quality food products to local 
and international markets. Under his leadership, Big Bird 
Foods has expanded its operations and cemented its 
position as a trusted brand in the industry. He is also the 
director of Big Bird Poultry Breeders, Big Feed and Grand 
Parent Poultry. Additionally, he is a former Chairman of 
the Pakistan Poultry Association (PPA) and ex-member 
syndicate committee at University of Veterinary and 
Animal Sciences.

Dr Abdul Karim is a Chief Executive at Big Feed (Pvt) Ltd. 
He is also a managing director of Big Bird Poultry Breeders 
(Pvt) Ltd. with a qualified Doctor of Veterinary Medicine, 
and masters in Animal Nutrition. He also possesses 
over 45 years of industry experience in R&D poultry and 
poultry feed production. He is a crucial decision maker 
for the production and marketing work carried out by Big 
Bird Group. He has also served as former Chairman of 
the Pakistan Poultry Association.

Dr Muhammad Aleem
Director

Dr. Muhammad Aleem is an accomplished academic and 
professional with over 40 years of experience in animal 
sciences, spanning teaching and research. He earned 
his PhD in Animal Sciences from the United States and 
completed his postdoctoral training at the University of 
London. Dr. Aleem has held leadership roles, including 
serving as Head of the Department and Dean of Livestock 
Business Management at the University of Veterinary and 
Animal Sciences (UVAS). Currently, he oversees the GP 
Laboratory, a facility that provides essential diagnostic 
services to the Big Bird Group and the broader commercial 
poultry industry. Beyond his professional endeavors, 
Dr. Aleem holds key positions as Chairman of both the 
Punjab Livestock Breeding Authority and the Livestock & 
Dairy Development Board, at provincial and federal levels 
respectively.

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE
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Mrs Saadia Karim 
Director

Mrs Saadia Karim is a partner at Green Nature Farms and is the founder and 
CEO of her furniture and interior design company, Oak and Teak. She has 
extensive managerial and marketing knowledge and expertise. She is also 
proficient in designing, marketing and production of furniture and other related 
interior designing. She is also a member of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce 
and Industries.

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE

Mr M. Tabassum Munir 
Independent Director

Mr Tariq Hamid
Independent Director

Mr. Tariq Hamid is an Independent Director and currently serves as a Director 
at AlBaraka Bank. He has held numerous prestigious positions throughout his 
career, including Chairman of the Punjab Privatization Board and the Task Force 
for the Revival of Sick Industrial Units. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Corporate & Industrial Restructuring Corporation (CIRC) and also chaired the 
Committee for the Revival of Sick Industrial Units. Mr. Hamid has served as the 
Provincial Minister for Finance, Planning & Development, Industries, Environment, 
and Excise & Taxation for the Government of Punjab, and as the Chairman of 
the Water & Power Development Authority (WAPDA). Additionally, he held the 
position of Federal Minister for Water & Power for the Government of Pakistan. 
His extensive experience includes being the Director and Chairman of Dane 
Foods Limited, Managing Director of Coates Lorilleux Pakistan Limited, and 
Director at several prominent companies including Packages Limited, Tetra Pak 
(Pakistan) Limited, Nestle Milkpak Limited, and Tri-Pack Films Limited. Mr. Hamid 
has also served as President of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry, 
Chairman of the Pakistan Pulp Paper & Board Makers’ Association, Chairman of 
the Management Association of Pakistan, and President of the Pakistan Industrial 
Employers Federation in Lahore.

Mr. M. Tabassum Munir has worked for more than three decades, as Member 
Lahore Stock Exchange, till January 2014. He also served on its Board of Directors 
for multiple terms, including as its Vice President. Additionally, he was Member 
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange. He has served on the Board of Directors at Hi-Tech 
Lubricants Ltd from April 2015 to October 2021, Synthetic Products Enterprises 
Ltd from October 2014 to October 2021, and Annoor Textile Mills Ltd from 1987 
to 1989.
His skills of managing and participating in all-inclusive Capital Market and its 
infrastructural development matters are widely acknowledged. He has participated 
in numerous seminars, round tables, conferences, workshops, and has gained 
valuable domain knowledge and experience. It has strengthened his dedicated 
role and capacity in the management of corporate affairs.
His current engagement(s) include:
•  Director, LSE Ventures Ltd.
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Mr Muhammad Riaz
Company Secretary &
Legal Head

Muhammad Ali Ahsen 
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Muhammad Ali Ahsen is CFO of Big Bird Foods Limited since August 2020. He has more 
than 30 years of experience in the field of finance, accounts & operations. 

His major expertise are financial modeling, corporate finance, fund raising through different 
options, IPOs/SPOs, Private placements, rights issues, preference shares, sukuk bonds, 
growth capital through venture capitalists, cash securitization, discounting (PO & invoice) 
bank loans (short term & long term). He is also expert in mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, 
restructuring, settlements, business valuations, negotiations with banks & financial institutions, 
moreover, he is also expert in supervision of all types of corporate compliances & corporate 
taxes. 

He is expert in tariff calculations/financial modeling, feasibilities of Solar, Hydel & Thermal 
power projects and had prepared & presented seven financial feasibilities to Punjab Power 
Development Board (PPDB). He also served as financial advisor to MS Shoes, Gloria Jeans, 
Buksh Group, SY Younus, Canal Palm Gardens and various others. 

He is qualified member of Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) 
& member of Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountants (PIPFA). 

Positions Previously Held:

•	 As Group CFO for four years at Sufi & Orient Steel Group

•	 As CFO/COO for eleven years at Hatco Group (Co Bottlers Coca Cola)

•	 As Chief Financial Controller for four years at Micro Electronics (Subsidiary concern of 
Ministry of Defence)

•	 As Chief Accountant for three years at Ashrafi Food Industries

•	 As Senior Audit & Accounts Officer for four years at Javed Jalal Amjad & Co. (Chartered 
Accountants)

Mr. Muhammad Riaz is Company Secretary & Head of Legal of Big Bird Foods Limited since 
September 2023. He has more than 17 years of experience in the field of Corporate Laws, 
Secretarial Compliances, Labour & Taxation Laws. 

His major expertise are listing of companies IPOs, Incorporation of Companies, Statutory 
Compliances, winding up, & merger of companies including single member, Private, Public 
(Unlisted & Listed). He is also expert in compliances of Pre & Post listing requirements with 
Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Central Depository Company (CDC) 
and Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). He also served as corporate advisor & Legal consultant 
of Urea Manufacturing, Service, Pharma, Construction and various other corporate sectors.  

He holds the degree of Masters of Business Administration, Bachelors of Law & One Year 
Post Graduate diploma in Taxation Laws. He holds more than 17 years of professional 
experience covering multidimensional concerns ranging from both, Public and the Private 
sectors of the economy. 

Positions previously held include:

•	 As Group Company Secretary & Head of Legal for three years at Citi Pharma Limited

•	 As Senior Manager Corporate Affairs for one year and three years as Corporate Advisor 
at Systems Limited

•	 As Assistant Manager Corporate & Taxation for four years at KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
(Chartered Accountants)

•	 As Corporate & Tax Executive for four years at “The TAQ Organization”

KEY MANAGEMENTS’
PROFILE
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Sitting
Left to Right

Standing
Left to Right

1. Abdul Karim, Non-Executive Director

2. Muhammad Aleem, Non-Executive Director

1. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal, CEO/Executive Director 

2. Tariq Hamid, Independent Director

3. Abdul Basit, Chairman/Non-Executive Director

4. Muhammad Tabbassum Munir, Independent Director
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SALIENT
FEATURES OF PLANT

Hygiene Stations
•	 Five Changing Rooms
•	 Two for processing and three for further processing
•	 Separate change room for low risk and high risk 

areas in further processing
•	 One way flow
•	 Hygiene stations at each entrance

Workers perform Ablution (Wadhu) before 
Slaughtering
•	 All Slaughtering is manual (by using hands)
•	 Slaughtering person recites takbeer “Bismillah 

Allaahu Akbar”
•	 Slaughtering person faces kaaba while slaughtering

Air Chilling Technology

•	 The only plant in Pakistan which is equipped with the 
latest Air Chilling Technology

•	 The Temperature of a chicken carcass has to be 
lowered to at least 2C

•	 Within one hour of slaughter 
Chicken are suspended separately from a track that 
moves through air chilling tunne

•	 The bird cover about 1.2 KM and remain in the 
chilling tunnel for over 1 -1/2 hour.
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
OF THE COMPANY
Designation Names Experience

General Manager Khalid Mehmood Hanif •	 39 years of experience 
with Big Bird 

Chief HR Officer Ghulam Mohyy ud Din •	 Master in HRM
•	 MBA, LLB, DTL
•	 19 Years HR experience

Head of Internal Audit Mr Kaleem Ullah •	 ACMA

•	 6 years Internal Audit 
experience

Plant Operations Manager Dr Muhammad Ishtiaq Anwar •	 DVM
•	 25 Years Processing 

Plant experience

Quality and R&D Manager Muhammad Umair •	 M.Sc. Food Sciences 
•	 17 Years Professional 

experience in Food 
Quality 

Marketing Manager Sohaib Ahmed •	 MS Marketing
•	 14 Years Marketing 

experience in FMCG

National Sales Manager Muhammad Adeel Nasim •	 Masters in Marketing
•	 17 Years FMCG Sales 

experience

Head of Procurement Haroon Samad •	 MBA Supply Chain
•	 16 Years Procurement 

experience
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CLASSIC
CHICKEN WINGS
Our mouth-watering classic chicken wings are expertly crafted to satisfy your cravings. 
Juicy and flavorful, our classic chicken wings are pre-marinated in a savory blend of 
spices and herbs. Bake or fry for a crispy, golden finish. 
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CHICKEN
JALAPENO
Spicy and savory, our Chicken Jalapeno is a flavorful treat. Tender chicken pieces 
coated with a spicy jalapeno seasoning, and contain a crispy and juicy finger-licking 
taste.
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CHAIRMAN’S
REVIEW 
Dear Shareholders, Stakeholders, and Valued Customers,

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the Annual Report for Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL) for the financial year 
2023-24. This year has been a significant one for our company, marked by several milestones and achievements that 
I am proud to share with you today.

2023-24 was a transformational year for BBFL, as we successfully listed the company on the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange (PSX). This pivotal step has not only strengthened our capital base but also reinforced our commitment to 
transparency, corporate governance, and sustainable growth. The trust placed in us by investors is both an honor and 
a responsibility, and we are determined to meet and exceed the expectations of all our stakeholders.

At BBFL, our mission remains clear: to provide high-quality, nutritious, and affordable food products to our customers. 
Over the past year, we have expanded our product lines, improved our production capabilities, and optimized our 
supply chain processes to ensure that we can continue to meet the growing demand in both local and international 
markets. Our commitment to innovation and quality has been the cornerstone of our success, and it will continue to 
guide us as we move forward.

In an era where sustainability is critical to long-term success, we have taken meaningful steps to integrate environmental, 
social, and governance (ESG) principles into our business model. We recognize the importance of minimizing our 
environmental footprint while delivering value to our communities and shareholders. This year, we have launched 
initiatives aimed at reducing waste, improving energy efficiency, and ensuring the well-being of our workforce.

As we look ahead, I am confident that BBFL is well-positioned for continued growth and success. The macroeconomic 
challenges facing our industry are real, but our resilience, coupled with a strong strategic focus, positions us to 
navigate these uncertainties. We will continue to explore new markets, invest in technology, and strengthen our team 
to ensure that we can seize emerging opportunities in an ever-evolving industry.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our employees, customers, 
shareholders, and business partners for their unwavering support throughout the year. I also want to acknowledge the 
hard work and dedication of our leadership team, whose tireless efforts have helped us achieve remarkable progress 
during a challenging time.

Together, we will continue to build on our success and strive towards a future of sustainable, inclusive growth for BBFL.

Thank you for your trust in us.

Sincerely,  

Abdul Basit  
Chairman  
Big Bird Foods Limited
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CEO
MESSAGE
Dear Shareholders, Partners, and Colleagues,

As I reflect on the year 2023-24, I am filled with immense pride for what we have accomplished together at Big Bird 
Foods Limited (BBFL). This year has been a defining one in our journey, characterized by significant growth, new 
achievements, and an unwavering commitment to our core values.

Our most notable milestone this year was the successful listing of BBFL on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. This 
achievement marks a new chapter in our history and is a testament to the hard work, dedication, and trust of our entire 
team. The transition to a publicly listed company underscores our commitment to transparency, accountability, and 
long-term growth.

This year, the Company’s sales increased from Rs. 6.06 billion to Rs. 7.21 billion, and its gross profit margin raised from 
9% to 22%. The Company’s net profit margin also improved from -1.9% to 11.6%, while earnings per share grew to 
2.80, compared to -0.39 in the previous year.

We also continued to enhance our product portfolio, improving our processes and expanding our customer based 
both locally and internationally. Our focus on quality, innovation, and operational excellence has driven us to new 
heights, and we are now better positioned to capitalize on the growing demand for premium food products.

At the heart of our strategy is the desire to create value for all our stakeholders. Over the past year, we have made 
significant investments in modernizing our production facilities, optimizing supply chain efficiencies, and enhancing our 
distribution networks. These initiatives have not only improved our operational agility but have also enabled us to serve 
our customers more effectively.

Moreover, we remain committed to sustainability and are taking active steps to reduce our environmental impact. From 
energy-efficient processes to sustainable sourcing, we are dedicated to ensuring that BBFL remains a responsible 
corporate citizen.

While this year brought numerous opportunities, it also presented challenges in the form of macroeconomic pressures, 
supply chain disruptions, and rising costs. However, our strong foundation and adaptive approach enabled us to 
navigate these hurdles successfully. Our resilient team and strategic foresight helped us maintain operational excellence, 
even in the face of adversity.

As we look forward, we are excited about the future and many opportunities it holds. We will continue to build on 
our strengths, leverage emerging technologies, and explore new markets to drive sustainable growth. Innovation will 
remain at the core of our operations, enabling us to offer the best quality products to our consumers while maximizing 
shareholder value.

I would like to extend my deepest appreciation to our employees for their relentless dedication and hard work. Their 
commitment to our vision is the driving force behind our success. I would also like to thank our shareholders, customers, 
and business partners for their continued trust and confidence in BBFL.

Together, we will continue to innovate, grow, and succeed, making BBFL a leader in the industry.

Thank you for your support as we embark on this exciting new chapter.

Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal  
Chief Executive Officer  



Big Bird Foods Limited16

DIRECTORS’
REPORT 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS For the year ended June 30, 2024

This report has been prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and will be submitted to the shareholders at the 13th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2024.

Dear Members
The Directors are pleased to present this report, accompanied by the Company’s audited financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The information provided below encompasses the performance of the Company 
during this year.

Overview:
The principal business activities of the Company include: the poultry farming, slaughtering, processing and supply of 
finished and semi-finished poultry products.

From an economic point of view, this was yet another challenging year characterized by high inflation, fiscal deficit, and 
significant external debt, in addition to long-standing structural weaknesses. However, despite these challenges, the 
economy witnessed some improvement propelled by stringent consolidation efforts, political stability, and fiscal stability 
reforms rolled out by the government. 

In response to the macroeconomic challenges, the Company’s leadership is proactively implementing strategies 
focused on cost optimization, risk management, and innovation to enhance operational efficiencies. The leadership 
remains committed to delivering value to our stakeholders and have full confidence in our business’s strength and 
resilience to navigate these challenges and adapt seamlessly to evolving economic conditions.

The leadership of the Company is pleased to announce that as a part of the strategic business plan, the company has 
entered into strategic partnerships to distribute the premium products across Pakistan for-both B2C customers and 
certain B2B clients- thus increasing the product availability on a nation-wide basis.

Financial Results:

The financial results of the Company For the year ended June 30, 2024, as compared to last year is as follows:

Financial Year Ended June 30,2024 2024 2023
Rs. in ‘000’

Sales – net 7,209,868 6,061,862
Cost of sales (5,622,333) (5,491,270)
Gross Profit 1,587,535 570,593
Operating expenses (479,202) (334,809)
Finance cost (344,146) (462,180)
Other income 81,190 71,824
Profit/(Loss) before income tax and Levies 845,376 (154,572)
Levies (3,779) (46,155)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 841,597 (200,727)
Taxation (3,389) 83,748
Profit/(Loss) after tax 838,209 (116,979)
Earning / (Loss) per share                                                                        2.80 (0.39)

The Company achieved a 19% increase in net turnover, reaching PKR 7.210 billion compared to the previous year’s 
turnover of PKR 6.062 billion.

The Company is committed to its vision of positively enhancing the quality of life of our consumers by expanding its 
product base through continuous innovation & renovation.
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT 
Export Performance
During the current year, though the Company has successfully recorded highest-ever export at Rs. 368 million, 
registering an increase of 47% compared to the same period last year.

Human Resources
Big Bird Foods Limited’s success is built on a foundation of human capital. By cultivating a high performing, engaged 
workforce, our Human Resources department plays a pivotal role in overcoming challenges, achieving sustainable 
growth, and delivering long-term value to all those we serve. By investing in employee’s growth and development, and 
ensuring leadership continuity, we position ourselves for long-term success.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is a socially & environmentally responsible organization and is carrying out initiatives for the uplift of the 
employees, community where we operate and extend assistance in education, health and other needed areas. 
CSR plan is implemented, few of initiatives have been mentioned here:-
a.	 Contribution in construction of District Public School, Pattoki, an educational set-up for better level of education 

for the people of that area where our processing plant is located. 
b.	 Providing assistance in studies of kids of an officer who died during service. 
c.	 Provide assistance to deserving families, in area of operations to maintain their livelihood.

Future Programs
Management of the Company has planned to extend medical care facilities in that area in near future e.g. setting up a 
medical dispensary at Jumber stop and medical camps in the adjoining areas.

Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures 
The Company is committed to promoting high standards of ethical behavior throughout its business. The management 
condemns corrupt and fraudulent practices and ensures transparency, integrity and honesty in all aspects of work. 
The Company expects all of its employees to perform their duties with utmost integrity and sheer professionalism. The 
Company has a whistle-blowing policy in place, where any employee can point out any perceived discrepancy in total 
confidence.

Contribution to National Exchequer 
The Company contributed around PKR 899.5 million to the government treasury in form of taxes, income tax and 
sales tax.

Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the Company have been audited and approved by the auditors of the firm, Abdul Khaliq & 
Co. Chartered Accountants.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
a)	 The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the result 

of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
b)	 Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
c)	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and 

accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 
d)	 International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 

financial statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and explained. 
e)	 The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. 
f)	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
g)	 Requirement of audit committee was not applicable on Big Bird Foods Limited till June 30, 2024, the Company 

was listed on the stock exchange on August 5, 2024.The Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee 
after the year end. 

h)	 Outstanding liabilities on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any, are disclosed in the financial  
statements.

i)	 The Board consists of two independent Directors, four non-executive Directors and one executive Director. It 
includes six male and one female member. 
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Dividend 
The Board of Directors has decided to use surplus cash for business development and has decided to defer the 
dividend distribution at present.

Auditors 
The present external Auditors, Abdul Khaliq & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed the annual audit For the 
year ended June 30, 2024, and issued a clean audit report. The auditors will retire on the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment. As proposed by the 
Audit Committee, the Board recommends their appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending on June 
30, 2025 on same remuneration. 

Composition of the Board 
There are seven Directors as of June 30, 2024

Name

Mr Abdul Basit

Mr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Mr. Abdul Karim

Mr. Salman Basit

Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal

Mr. Muhammad Aleem

Mr. Sadia Karim

Mr. Muhammad Tabbassum Munir and Mr. Tariq Hamid have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company 
in place of resigning Directors Mr. Salman Basit and Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal respectively with effect from August 
3, 2024.

Further, Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Audit Committee and Human Resources & Remuneration 
Committee. The composition of the committees is as below:

Board of Directors
Audit 

Committee
Human Resource & 

Remuneration Committee

Independent Directors
Mr. Muhammad Tabbassum Munir Member
Mr. Tariq Hamid Member

Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Non-Executive

Mr. Abdul Basit (Chairman) Member Member
Mr. Muhammad Aleem Member
Mrs. Saadia Karim
Mr.  Abdul Karim Member

Directors’ Remuneration

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Board (HR&RC) has been authorized by the Board to design 
and oversee the implementation of the Company’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy. A formal Directors Remuneration 
Policy was approved by the Board. Its salient features are enumerated below:

The objectives of the policy are two-fold:
•	 To attract, motivate and retain directors of the highest caliber with broad commercial experience, and
•	 To comply with all the provisions of all relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to directors’ remunerations.

DIRECTORS’
REPORT 
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The Policy has been drawn considering the following:
•	 Company’s strategic aims and goals.
•	 Company’s corporate social responsibility.
•	 Company’s core principle of business integrity.
•	 The market conditions for desired talent.
•	 A need for maintaining a work atmosphere that is conducive to efficiency, maturity of thought, motivation to 

progress and attainment of corporate goals; and
•	 Remuneration structure for directors in similar businesses in Pakistan as well as other companies of comparable 

size.

However, while setting the remuneration package of any individual director, the following factors are considered:
•	 The particular qualifications, relevant experience and stature of the director.
•	 The prevailing market value of his/her particular talent.
•	 The nature of association of the director with the company, i.e. type of directorship held.

Remuneration of Independent Directors is restricted to Directors’ Meetings’ Fees only.

Vision, Mission, and Overall Corporate Strategy Approved by the Board 
The Board of Directors has thoroughly reviewed and approved the vision, mission, and corporate strategy of the 
Company, and believes it fully reflects the founding principles of the company. 

This vision and mission guide the corporate strategy and future trajectory, influencing all aspects of operations at every 
level. The entire organization is aligned and motivated by this purpose, which serves as the primary decision-making 
standard in daily business activities.

Statement of Unreserved Compliance with IFRS Issued by IASB
The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the Financial Reporting process. The Financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved 
accounting standards consist of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Act.

Change in the Nature of Business
No significant changes have occurred during the Financial Year concerning the nature of the business of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding and additional information as of June 30, 2024, is part of the Annual Report of the 
Company. The Directors own 70%, and individuals own 30% of the entire shareholding.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control 
The effective system of internal financial control has been established by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
The controls have been put in place to ensure the efficient and smooth running of the business, prevention and 
detection of fraud and errors, safeguarding the Company’s assets, compliance with laws and regulations, accuracy, 
and completeness of books of accounts, and timely preparation of reliable financial information. Internal Financial 
Controls are periodically reviewed to ensure these remain effective and are updated with amendments in any laws and 
regulations.

Acknowledgment
The Board of Directors would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all our stakeholders, including employees, 
customers, suppliers, shareholders, and bankers, for their unwavering support. The confidence and goodwill of our 
stakeholders have been instrumental in enabling the Company to sustain and grow over the years.
We recognize that the collective efforts and trust of our stakeholders have been key to our success, and we are 
committed to maintaining and strengthening these vital relationships. Our employees’ dedication, our customers’ 
loyalty, our suppliers’ reliability, our shareholders’ trust, and our bankers’ support have all played crucial roles in our 
achievements.
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As we look to the future, we continue to seek Allah’s blessings for the continued success and prosperity of the 
Company. We remain dedicated to not only the benefit of all our stakeholders but also to the broader welfare of our 
Country. We pray that our endeavors contribute positively to the economic and social fabric of the nation, fostering 
growth and development for all.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Muhammad Mustafa Kamal		         Abdul Basit
CEO/Director	 Chairman/Director		

Lahore: October 03, 2024
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Big Bird Foods Limited (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state 
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the  statement of 
financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 
June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(i) Merger of Meta Tech Trading Limited
(refers note 1.2 to the annexed financial statements)
The merger of Meta Tech Trading Limited with and 
into the Company is considered a key audit matter 
due to the one-off nature of transaction, complexity 
of its settlement and accounting treatment in the 
financial statements.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

•	 Understood and analyzed the accounting 
treatment of merger transaction in the light of 
relevant IFRSs;

•	 Verified the relevant documentation relating to 
the merger transaction;

•	 Understood and evaluated the process of 
identifying the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed;

•	 Evaluated the internal controls in place for 
identifying, measuring, and recording the 
merger-related transactions and ensuring their 
accuracy;

•	 Reviewed the board of directors’ minutes and 
resolutions related to the merger to ensure that 
the board had approved the transaction and 
that it was carried out in accordance with their 
directives;

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

•	 Ensured that merger was executed in 
compliance with the Court’s Order; and

•	 Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in 
the financial statements made by the Company 
regarding the merger transaction as per the 
applicable accounting and reporting standards

(ii) Revenue Recognition 
(refers note 24 to the annexed financial statements)
The principal activity of the Company is 
manufacturing of processed food products. 
Revenue is recognized when performance obligation 
is satisfied by transferring control of promised goods 
to a customer. We considered revenue recognition 
as a key audit matter as it is an area of significant 
audit risk as part of the audit process.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

•	 Understood and evaluated the accounting 
policy with respect to revenue recognition. 

•	 Performed testing of revenue transactions on 
a sample basis with underlying documentation 
documents and sales invoices.  Tested on a 
‘sample basis’, specific revenue transactions 
recorded before and after the reporting date 
with underlying documentation to assess 
whether revenue was recognized in the correct 
period.

•	 Performed audit procedures to analyze variation 
in the price and quantity sold during the year.

(iii) Stock in trade 
(refers note 8 to the annexed financial statements)
As of June 30, 2024, the company held stock valued 
at 1.27 billion which constitutes a significant portion 
of the company’s total assets.
Given the complexity associated with the multiple 
stages of production and distribution, the verification 
of inventory quantity was critical area requiring 
significant audit attention.
The accuracy and valuation was also a key audit 
matter due to involvement of multiple stages in the 
inventory process.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

•	 Checked records in the trial balance and cross 
checked quantities to ensure accuracy.

•	 We assessed the effectiveness of the company’s 
internal controls over inventory management 
particularly at different production stages.

•	 We performed substantive analytical procedures 
using disaggregated data to gain assurance 
over the recognized stock.

•	 We checked final valuation sheet against the 
physical stock taking sheet to ensure that all 
items were included, we also reconciled final 
stock valuation sheet to the general ledger 
and stock ledger, verifying amounts against 
appropriate sources.

•	 We tested the costing of the inventory and 
performed net realizable value (NRV) testing 
to assess whether the cost of the inventory 
exceeded its NRV. We also ensured that any 
necessary provisions were made appropriately 
in the circumstances.

•	 Reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures on 
the stock in trade in the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

	 a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017);

	
	 b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 

the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

	
	 c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of 

the Company’s business; and
	
	 d)	 no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Mr. Abdul Khaliq FCA.

Abdul Khaliq & Co., 
Chartered Accountants
Place: Lahore

Date:  October 03, 2024
UDIN: AR2024102932SEiAlrZB
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
 As at June 30, 2024

2024  2023 
Note ----------Rupees----------

ASSETS

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  7,581,733,297  7,078,874,843 
Long term loans and advances 5  636,000  584,000 
Long term deposits and prepayments 6  18,786,208  28,998,708 

 7,601,155,505  7,108,457,551 

Current Assets
Stores and spares 7  261,907,586  293,200,276 
Stock in trade 8  1,275,198,398  903,099,084 
Trade debts 9  1,003,306,138  905,855,993 
Loans and advances 10  14,742,532  198,645,046 
Deposits and prepayments 11  17,052,709  9,283,759 
Short-term investment 12  6,230,575  43,316,882 
Cash and bank balances 13  157,442,171  30,778,205 

 2,735,880,109  2,384,179,245 

TOTAL ASSETS 10,337,035,615  9,492,636,796 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Share capital 14  2,989,057,860  2,970,930,000 
Accumulated profit / (loss)  919,200,714 (1,883,945,996)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 15  1,433,093,840  3,422,486,307 
Total equity  5,341,352,414  4,509,470,311 

Non Current Liabilities
Long term finances - secured 16  798,506,635  1,017,320,890 
Deferred markup 17  690,347,768  239,153,460 
Deferred taxation-net 18  503,450,223  730,871,525 
Employee's benefit obligation 19  122,331,005  90,181,735 

 2,114,635,630  2,077,527,610 
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term financing 16  1,317,507,615  1,230,973,206 
Short term borrowings 20  189,249,213  341,528,382 
Trade and other payables 21  836,718,481  609,277,477 
Accrued and deferred mark-up 22  537,572,263  723,859,810 

 2,881,047,572  2,905,638,875 

Contingencies and commitments 23  -    -   

Total Equity and Liabilities 10,337,035,615  9,492,636,796 
 

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Restated
2024  2023 

Note ----------Rupees----------

Revenue 24  7,209,867,910  6,061,862,337 

Cost of sales 25 (5,622,332,963) (5,491,269,612)

Gross Profit  1,587,534,947  570,592,725 

Distribution and selling expenses 26  (204,784,390) (172,523,251)

Administration expenses 27  (151,856,186) (122,363,643)

Other expenses 28  (122,561,357) (39,921,691)

 (479,201,933)  (334,808,585)

 1,108,333,014  235,784,140 

Other income 29  81,189,711  71,824,107 

Profit from operations  1,189,522,726  307,608,247 

Finance cost 30  (344,146,490)  (462,180,311)

Profit / (Loss) before levy and taxation  845,376,235  (154,572,064)

Levies 31  (3,778,958)  (46,155,043)

Profit / (Loss) before taxation  841,597,277  (200,727,107)

Taxation 32  (3,388,538)  83,748,270 

Profit / (Loss) after taxation  838,208,739  (116,978,837)

 

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen



33Annual Report 2024

2024  2023
----------Rupees----------

Profit / (Loss) after taxation  838,208,739  (116,978,837)

Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income  (703,000)  360,452 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  837,505,739  (116,618,385)

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 For the year ended June 30, 2024

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen
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Capital Reserve Revenue Reserves
TotalShare

Capital
Revaluation 

surplus
Accumulated 

profit / (losses)
Director’s

loan
--------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------

Balance as at July 01, 2022  2,970,930,000  3,557,950,775 (1,902,792,080)  16,000,000  4,642,088,695 

Loss for the year  -    -    (116,978,837)  -    (116,978,837)
Other comprehensive income  -    -    360,452  -    360,452 
Total comprehensive loss  -    -    (116,618,385)  -    (116,618,385)

Incremental depreciation - net of tax  -    (135,464,468)  135,464,468  -    -   
 -    (135,464,468)  135,464,468  -    -   

Transactions with owners:
Loan repaid to director  -    -    -    (16,000,000)  (16,000,000)

 -    -    -    (16,000,000)  (16,000,000)

Balance as on June, 30 2023  2,970,930,000  3,422,486,307 (1,883,945,996)  -    4,509,470,311 

Balance as at July 01, 2023  2,970,930,000  3,422,486,307 (1,883,945,996)  -    4,509,470,311 

Profit for the year  -    -    838,208,739  -    838,208,739 
Other comprehensive loss  -    -    (703,000)  -    (703,000)
Total comprehensive Income  -    -    837,505,739  -    837,505,739 

Incremental depreciation - net of tax  -    (91,561,111)  91,561,111  -    -   
Surplus transferred to retained earnings on 
disposal of property plant and equipment  -    (5,600,000)  5,600,000  -    -   
Transfer of accumulated losses  under 
merger scheme  -    -    (79,947,886)  -    (79,947,886)
Merger reserves  under merger scheme  -    -    56,196,390  -    56,196,390 
Set off of accumulated losses against surplus 
under the merger scheme  -   

 
(1,892,231,356)  1,892,231,356  -    -   

 -   (1,989,392,467)  1,965,640,971  -    (23,751,496)

Transactions with owners:
Shares issued against merger scheme  18,127,860  -    -    -    18,127,860 

 18,127,860  -    -    -    18,127,860 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 2,989,057,860 1,433,093,840 919,200,714 - 5,341,352,414

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
 For the year ended June 30, 2024

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen
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2024 2023
Note ----------Rupees----------

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from operations 33  1,200,590,596  584,942,025 
Net (increase) / decrease in long term loans to employees  (52,000)  1,036,241 
Net (increase) / decrease in long term deposits & prepayments  10,212,500  (16,444,680)
Finance cost paid  (79,239,730)  (145,861,817)
Gratuity paid  (6,160,977)  (10,210,146)
Income tax and levies paid  (71,455,407)  (22,639,217)
Net cash generated from operating activities  1,053,894,981  390,822,406 

Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment including
capital work in progress  (718,213,824)  (51,848,571)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  27,400,000  79,430,401 
Interest received on short term investment  11,741,826  5,070,785 
Net cash generated from / (used) in investing activities  (679,071,998)  32,652,615 

 
Cash flow from financing activities
Loan from director - repayments  -    (16,000,000)
Long term financing - repayments  (223,279,856)  (399,250,000)
Short term financing - net  (61,279,161)  (20,241,032)
Net cash used in financing activities  (284,559,017)  (435,491,032)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  90,263,965  (12,016,011)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  73,378,205  85,394,216 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33.1  163,642,171  73,378,205 

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

M/s Big Bird Foods Limited is large sized company incorporated on September 21, 2011 in Pakistan 
as a Private Limited Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with enactment 
of The Companies Act, 2017). Subsequently it was converted into public limited company on 
June 01, 2023. The principal activities are poultry farming, slaughtering, processing and supply of 
finished & semi finished poultry products.
The geographical location and address of the company’s business place and plant is as under;
- The company’s registered office is situated at 2-A, Ahmad Block, New Garden Town Lahore.
- The company’s manufacturing facilities are located at 63 Km Multan Road, Lahore.

Further, the Company’s outlets are situated in Rawalpindi, Multan, Lahore and Karachi.

1.2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period

1.2.1 On May 19, 2023, the company entered into an agreement with MetaTech Trading Limited 
(META), a publicly listed company, to acquire complete management control of META. 
Consequently, the company strategized a reverse merger with META. Pursuant to the 
agreement with META, Big Bird Foods (Pvt.) Ltd. initiated the process of converting into a 
public limited company. This conversion was successfully completed on June 01, 2023. 
Additionally, on June 26, 2024, the merger scheme filed by the company was approved 
by the Lahore High Court, Lahore (Civil Original No. 43907/2023). Later, the company was 
listed on the stock exchange on August 05, 2024.

The impact of the merger as of June 26, 2024, has been incorporated into the financial 
statements as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024

1.2.2 Pre Merger and Post Merger Statement of Financial Position of Big Bird Foods 
Limited

Big Bird Foods 
Limited

MetaTech 
Trading Limited

Merger Effects/ 
Reclassification

Big Bird Foods 
Limited

BBFL META BBFL
June 26, 2024 June 26, 2024 After Merger

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  7,090,942,507 - -  7,090,942,507 
Capital work in progress  359,802,611 - -  359,802,611 
Long term loans and advances  684,000 - -  684,000 
Long term deposits and prepayments  29,813,208 - -  29,813,208 

 7,481,242,326  -    -    7,481,242,326 
Current assets
Stores and spares  261,283,836 - -  261,283,836 
Stock in trade  1,274,846,781  1,274,846,781 
Trade debts  1,031,838,036 - -  1,031,838,036 
Loans and advances  51,685,956  287,931 -  51,973,887 
Deposits and prepayments  2,841,994 - -  2,841,994 
Short term investment  36,916,882 - -  36,916,882 
Cash and bank balances  150,129,434 - -  150,129,434 

 2,809,542,919  287,931 -  2,809,830,850 

TOTAL ASSETS  10,290,785,245  287,931 -  10,291,073,176 
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2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS 
Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB)  as notified under 
the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Act, 2017. Where provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ 
from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement and preparation

These financial statements  have  been prepared  under  historical  cost convention,  
except as disclosed in policies.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024

Big Bird Foods 
Limited

MetaTech 
Trading Limited

Merger Effect/ 
Reclassification

Big Bird Foods 
Limited

BBFL META BBFL
June 26, 2024 June 26, 2024 After Merger

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital  3,000,000,000  600,000,000  3,600,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  2,970,930,000  74,324,250  (56,196,390)  2,989,057,860 
Accumulated profit / (loss)  (957,833,882)  (79,947,886)  1,892,231,356  854,449,588 
Surplus on revaluation surplus of 
operating fixed assets

 3,279,972,295 -  (1,892,231,356)  1,387,740,939 

Merger reserves - -  56,196,390  56,196,390 
 5,293,068,413  (5,623,636) -  5,287,444,777 

Non-current liabilities
Long term finance - secured  485,579,602 - -  485,579,602 
Deferred markup  680,847,204 - -  680,847,204 
Diminishing musharaka finance  346,090,000 - -  346,090,000 
Deferred taxation - net  491,374,667 - -  491,374,667 
Employees' benefit obligations  97,344,214 - -  97,344,214 

 2,101,235,687  -    -    2,101,235,687 
Current liabilities
Current and overdue portion of current 
liabilities  1,356,843,891 - -  1,356,843,891 
Short term borrowings  244,664,088 - -  244,664,088 
Trade and other payables  742,962,260  5,911,567 -  748,873,827 
Accrued and deferred mark-up  552,010,907 - -  552,010,907 

 2,896,481,145  5,911,567 -  2,902,392,712 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  10,290,785,245  287,931 -  10,291,073,176 
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (PKR) that is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency. Amounts presented in Pakistan rupee have been 
rounded off to nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, the management has made judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of company’s accounting policies and reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are discussed in the ensuing 
paragraphs.

2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the residual values and useful life of property, plant and equipment 
on regular basis. Further where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is 
made for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in such estimates in future 
years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and 
equipment with corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, impairment and related 
deferred tax liability.

2.4.2 Provision for inventory obsolescence

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade, stores, spare parts and 
loose tools to assess any diminution in the respective carrying  values. Net realizable value 
is determined with reference to estimated selling  price less estimated cost to complete 
and estimated cost to make the sales.

2.4.3 Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and 
judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

2.4.4 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by 
the taxation authorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the income tax 
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on 
items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent 
liabilities.
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2.4.5 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable  that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined 
by discounting the expected future cash flows at pre-tax rate that reflects the current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability.  The 
un-winding or discount is recognized as finance cost, if any.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation can not be measured with 
sufficient reliability, it is disclosed as contingent liability.

2.4.6 Impairment

2.4.6.1 Impairment of financial assets 

The Company measures Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at 
amortized cost after considering the pattern of receipts from and future financial outlook 
of the counterparty and is reviewed by the management on regular basis. Any change in 
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
assets with a corresponding effect on the profit or loss.

2.4.6.2 Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying  amounts  of the Company’s  assets  are reviewed at each balance  sheet  
date to determine  whether  there  is any  indication  of  impairment  loss.  If such indication 
exists, recoverable amount is estimated using criteria given in respective accounting  
standards to determine the extent of impairment  loss, if any.

2.5 New standards and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards 
that are not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Company 
for its  annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024. The new standards include 
IFRS 18 Presentation and  Disclosure in Financial Statements and IFRS 19 Subsidiaries 
without Public Accountability: Disclosures  both with applicability date of January 1, 2027 
as per IASB. These standards will become part of  the Company’s financial reporting 
framework upon adoption by the SECP. The overall amendments  include those made to 
IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 which clarify the date of recognition and derecognition of  a financial 
asset or financial liability which are applicable effective January 1, 2026. The Company’s 
management at present is in the process of assessing the full impacts of these new 
standards and  the amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 and is expecting to complete the 
assessment in due course.

2.6 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting 
and reporting standards

Amendments to accounting and reporting standards and interpretation / guidance which  
became effective during the year ended June 30, 2024.
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There were certain amendments that became applicable for the Company during the year 
but are  not considered to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the Company’s 
operations  and have, therefore, not been disclosed in these financial statements except 
that during the year  certain amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 
have become applicable to the  Company which require entities to disclose their material 
accounting policy information rather than  their significant accounting policies. These 
amendments to IAS have been introduced to help entities  improve accounting policy 
disclosures so that they provide more useful information to investors and other primary 
users of the financial statements. These amendments have been incorporated in  these 
financial statements with the primary impact that the material accounting policy information  
has been disclosed rather than the significant accounting policies.

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn 
Technical Release 27 ‘IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the ‘IAS 12 
Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). 
Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting 
policy to recognise  minimum and final taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” which were previously being recognised as Income tax

The Company has accounted for the effects of these changes in accounting policy 
retrospectively  under IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors” and the corresponding  figures have been restated in these financial statements. 
The effects of restatements  are as follows:

The related changes to the statement of cash flows with respect to the amount of profit 
before  taxation have been made as well. There is no impact on profit after tax and earnings 
per share, basic and diluted.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Had there been 
no change in 
accounting 

policy

Impact of change 
in accounting 

policy

After 
incorporating 

effects of change 
in accounting 

policy
----------------------(Rupees)----------------------

Effect on statement of profit or loss

For the year ended June 30, 2024
Levies  -    (3,778,958)  (3,778,958)
Profit before tax  845,376,235  (3,778,958)  841,597,277 
Taxation  (7,167,496)  3,778,958  (3,388,538)
Profit after tax  838,208,739  -    838,208,739 

For the year ended June 30, 2023

Levies  -    (46,155,043)  (46,155,043)
Profit before tax  (200,727,107)  (46,155,043)  (200,727,107)
Taxation  83,748,270  46,155,043  83,748,270 
Profit after tax  (116,978,837)  -    (116,978,837)
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3.1 The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are  the same as 
those applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the  Company for the year ended 
June 30, 2023.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold  land, capital work in progress are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land 
and capital work in progress are stated at cost less allowance  for impairment, if any. 
Cost of property, plant and equipment includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost during 
construction phase of relevant asset and other directly attributable costs including trial run 
production expenses (net of income, if any). Transfers from capital work in progress are 
made to the relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets 
are available for use in the manner intended by the company’s management.

Surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized, net of tax, in 
statement of comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity 
and is shown in equity. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the 
carrying amounts of the assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Accumulated 
depreciation at the date of revaluation is not eliminated against the cost of the asset. 
The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to the extent of incremental 
depreciation charged on the related property, plant and equipment during the year is 
transferred by the company to its unappropriated profit and is presented in statement of 
changes in equity.

Depreciation is charged to income on the reducing balance method so as to write off the 
depreciable amount of the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives 
at the rates specified in note 4. Depreciation on depreciable assets is commenced from 
the date the asset is available for use up to the date, when the asset is disposed off.

The cost or replacing a major item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the item will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced item is derecognized. The cost of the day to day servicing or 
property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss account as incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposals with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized on net basis within “other income” in profit or loss account.

3.3 Financial instruments

3.3.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost 
or measured at fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both: - The entity’s business 
model for managing the financial assets; and - The contractual cash flow characteristics 
of the financial asset.
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3.3.2 Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding. The Company includes in this 
category trade debts, short-term loans, advances and other receivables.

3.3.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if: (a) Its contractual terms 
do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are Solely Payments of Principal and 
Interest on the principal amount outstanding; (b) It is not held within a business model 
whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both collect contractual 
cash flows and sell; or (c) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured 
at fair value through profit or loss when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring 
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

3.3.4 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value through 
profit or loss, if any.

3.3.5 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Company has: (a) 
Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) Neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset. When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an 
asset (or has entered into a pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the 
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the 
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained. The Company derecognises a financial liability 
when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.3.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is off set and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the  recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net  basis  or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.
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3.4 Impairment losses

3.4.1 Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated 
with its financial assets. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognise 
lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets. 
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. 
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit 
risk characteristics. The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or 
loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date.

3.4.2 Non financial assets

The carrying  amounts of the  Company’s non-financial  assets, other  than  inventories 
and  deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each  reporting date  to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such  indication exists then  the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible  assets that have indefinite  lives or that  
are not yet available for use, recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable 
asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and 
groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in 
respect of cash-generating units  are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill  allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the  other  assets 
of the  unit on a pro-rata  basis.  Impairment losses on goodwill shall not be reversed.

3.5 Financial assets - Classification and measurement 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises of current and deferred tax.

3.5.1 Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after 
taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance 
with the final tax regime, where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the 
Ordinance) or the minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate 
Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the Ordinance, whichever is higher. Further , levies are 
accounted for in accordance with the requirement of IFRIC - 21.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024



Big Bird Foods Limited44

3.5.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is provided  using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused 
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is 
reviewed at each  balance sheet date  and reduced to the extent that  it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable  profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to 
the period when the asset is realized or the  liability is settled, based on the  tax rates (and 
tax laws) that  have  been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of 
items credited or charged to equity  in which case it is included  in equity.

3.6 Leases

3.6.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 
(i.e., the date the underlying assets available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured 
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets 
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 
useful lives of the assets.

3.6.2 Lease liabilities

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the 
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease 
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to 
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

3.7 Ijarah rentals

In ijarah transactions, significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor. Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ‘Ijarah’ requires the recognition of 
‘Ujrah payments’ (lease rentals) against ijarah financing as an expense in profit or loss on 
a straight line basis over the ijarah term.
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3.8 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the 
Company’s financial statements in the period in which dividends are approved.

3.9 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits 
will be  required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. 
However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date  and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimate. Where the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
Cost is determined as follows;

3.10.1 Stores and spares

Store, spares and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net 
realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average method except for the items in 
transit which is determined on the basis of cost incurred up to the balance sheet date. For 
items which are slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the Company’s requirements, 
adequate impairment is recognized. The company reviews the carrying amount of stores, 
spare parts and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made. 

3.10.2 Stock in trade

Stock of raw material, work in process and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted 
average cost and net realizable value. Stock of packing material is valued at weighted 
average cost less impairment, if any. Cost of work in process and finished goods comprises 
cost of direct material, labour and directly allocable manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to be incurred in order 
to make a sale.

3.11 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Provision is made 
on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of the trade debts/ bad debts are written off when considered 
irrecoverable.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring 
control of a promised goods or service to a customer, and control either transfers over 
time or at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal 
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024



Big Bird Foods Limited46

2024 2023
Note -----------Rupees-----------

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 4.1 7,221,930,685 6,956,481,676 
Capital work-in-progress 4.2  359,802,612  122,393,167 

 7,581,733,297  7,078,874,843 

3.13 Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at 
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies 
are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that  are stated at fair 
value are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values  
are determined. Exchange gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account 
currently.

3.14 Borrowing cost

Borrowing  costs are interest and other  costs that  the  Company incurs  in connection 
with the  borrowing of funds. The Company capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets as  part  
of the  cost  of these assets. The  Company recognizes other  borrowing costs as  an 
expense in the period in which it incurs.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand, 
cash at banks and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

3.16 Staff retirement benefits

The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees 
which provides for the graduated scale of benefits dependent on the length of service of 
the employee on termination date, subject to the completion of minimum qualifying period 
of service. Gratuity is based on employees’ last drawn salary. Remeasurement gains / 
losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end are recognised immediately in 
other comprehensive income and all other expenses are recognised in accordance with 
IAS-19 “Employee Benefits” in the profit and loss account. The most recent valuation was 
carried out as on June 30, 2024 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.
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4.1.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company had revalued its freehold land, building and plant & machinery at June 30, 
2021. The revaluation had been carried out by K.G.Traders (Private) Limited, an independent 
valuers not connected to the Company and was on the panel of approved valuers of Pakistan 
Banks Association and possessed appropriate qualification and experience in the fair value 
measurements. The basis used for the revaluation of freehold land, buildings and machinery 
were as follows;

Land

Instituted site and conducted market inquiries at surroundings area of the under valuation 
premises to ascertain the current market value of similar type of land, which is selling in the 
immediate surroundings.

Buildings

After taking into account the specification, type and class of building, the replacement value 
has been computed considering inflation factor, currency devaluation, escalation of building 
materials & labour rates etc.

Plant and machinery

For the purpose of valuation, the valuator evaluated the fixed asset in present condition, as 
acquired and exist in the companies’ ownership. After verification of the physical existence, 
location, condition of the property and best inquiries conducted in the market.

Forced Sales Value (FSV) of land, buildings and machinery was Rs. 793 million, Rs. 2,250 
million and Rs. 2,966 million respectively as at June 30, 2021.

The fair valuation of revalued assets has been determined using level 2 inputs of fair value 
hierarchy.

Had there been no revaluation the cost, accumulated depreciation and book value of 
revalued assets as at June 30, 2024 would have been as follows:

4.1.1 The following operating fixed assets with a net book value exceeding Rs 500,000 were disposed off during the year:

Particulars
Cost/

Revalued 
Amount

Accummlated 
Depreciation

Net Book 
Value

Sale
Proceede

Gain or 
(Loss)

Mode of 
Disposal

Particulars 
of buyers

Relationship 
of buyer with 

Company

Land- 7 Kanal 3 
Marla

 22,000,000  -    22,000,000 19,400,000 (2,600,000) Negotiation Abdul Basit Director

4.1.2 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Usage Total Area Covered Area

Moza Jamber Khurd 63 KM Multan Road Manufacturing Facility 189 Kanal 8 Marla 330,557 (Sq. feet)
Lahore Chowk Hundal Road/Kot Radha Kishan 
Kasur Road

Manufacturing Facility 78 Kanal 4 Marla 165,569 (Sq. Feet)
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Particulars Cost 
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Book Value

Land-freehold 131,674,928  -   131,674,928 
Building on - freehold land 1,716,439,441  880,675,008 835,764,433 
Plant and Machinery 3,139,933,111  1,284,444,401 1,855,488,710 
Total 4,988,047,480 2,165,119,409 2,822,928,071 

2024 2023
  ----------- Rupees----------- 

4.2 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works - building  359,802,612  122,393,167 
 359,802,612  122,393,167 

4.2.1 The movement in capital work in progress is as 
follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year  122,393,167  101,141,913 
Addition during the year  237,409,445  21,251,254 

 359,802,612  122,393,167 

4.3 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as 
follows;

Cost of sales  183,779,420  309,140,702 
Administrative expenses  2,212,840  4,167,088 
Distribution and selling expenses  6,970,338  3,658,870 

 192,962,598  316,966,660 

4.4 During the year, management reviewed the useful lives of operating fixed assets. Due to 
technological advancements and the physical condition of building and machinery, their 
useful lives have been extended. However, the useful lives of furniture, fixtures, and vehicles 
were reduced owing to increased wear and tear resulting from higher than expected usage.
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

5 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans to employees -secured  684,000  584,000 
Less: Current portion of long term loans & advances  48,000  -   

 636,000  584,000 

5.1 Company has provided interest free loan to its employees, adjustable against their monthly 
salary. These advances are secured against gratuity payable to staff.

6 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits - Ijarah  3,729,680  14,789,680 
Security deposits - other 6.1  15,056,528  14,209,028 

 18,786,208  28,998,708 

6.1 This includes security deposits for electricity and gas.

7 STORES AND SPARES

Stores and spares  261,907,586  293,200,276 

 261,907,586  293,200,276 

8 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material  96,185,521  108,333,246 
Packing material  50,157,549  52,612,491 
Finished goods 1,128,855,328  742,153,347 

1,275,198,398  903,099,084 

9 TRADE DEBTS

Trade debts - considered good - unsecured 9.1 1,159,786,140 1,008,028,730 
Allowance for expected credit losses  (156,480,002)  (102,172,737)

1,003,306,138  905,855,993 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

9.1 Movement in allowance for expected credit 
losses

At beginning of the year  102,172,736  62,251,044 
Charge for the year   54,307,265  39,921,692 
At end of the year  156,480,002  102,172,736 

10 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current maturity of advance to staff  48,000  -   
Advance to suppliers  10,358,998  119,843,662 
Letter of credit  895,961  1,737,415 
Advance Income tax  -    68,601,372 
Other advances  3,439,573  8,462,597 

 14,742,532  198,645,046 

11 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid expenses  4,369,210  4,952,660 
Security deposits  12,683,499  4,331,099 

 17,052,709  9,283,759 

12 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Term deposit receipts  6,230,575  43,316,882 
 6,230,575  43,316,882 

12.1 These represent term deposit receipts with financial institution having tenure from one to 
three months with returns ranging from 19% to 21.40% per annum (2023: 19.50%).

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks - local currency  153,862,612  29,089,183 
Cash in hand  3,579,559  1,689,022 

 157,442,171  30,778,205 

14 SHARE CAPITAL

14.1 Authorised share capital

This represents 360,000,000 (2023: 300,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each amounting 
to Rs 3,600 million (2023: Rs 3,000 million)

14.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital  14.3 2,989,057,860 2,970,930,000 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

14.3 Ordinary shares  297,093,000 ( 2023: 
297,093,000) of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in 
cash

 
2,970,930,000  2,970,930,000 

Ordinary shares 1,812,786 ( 2023: Nil) of Rs. 
10 each, fully paid for consideration other 
than cash  18,127,860  -   

2,989,057,860 2,970,930,000 

14.4 The movement in ordinary share capital 
issued is as under:

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 2,970,930,000 2,970,930,000 
Shares issued during the period for 
consideration other than cash- (issued as part 
of the merger scheme)

14.3
&1.2  18,127,860  -   

Closing balance at end of the year 2,989,057,860 2,970,930,000 

15 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 1,433,093,840 3,422,486,307 
15.1 1,433,093,840 3,422,486,307 

15.1 Opening balance 3,422,486,307 3,557,950,775 
Addition during the year  -    -   
Less: Incremental depreciation for the year  (128,959,312)  (185,479,551)
Transfer of surplus to retained earnings on disposal of 
fixed assets  (5,600,000)  -   
Set off  of accumulated losses against
surplus under the merger scheme. 1.2 (1,892,231,356) -
Closing balance at the end of year 1,395,695,639 3,372,471,224 
Related deferred tax liability 15.2  37,398,200  50,015,083 
Closing balance at the end of year 1,433,093,840 3,422,486,307 

15.2 Reconciliation of deferred tax attributed 
to revaluation surplus

Opening balance  (944,925,240)  (994,940,323)
Deferred tax on incremental depreciation  37,398,200  50,015,083 
Closing balance at the end of year  (907,527,040)  (944,925,240)

15.3 The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to 
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

16 LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED

From conventional banks / financial institutions 16.1 1,591,224,249 1,670,204,095 
From Islamic banks 16.2  524,790,000  578,090,000 
Long term finance 2,116,014,249 2,248,294,095 
Less: current portion shown under current liability (1,317,507,615) (1,230,973,206)
Long portion of long term finance  798,506,635  1,017,320,889 

16.1 From banking companies and other 
financial institutions - secured

National Bank of Pakistan 16.1.1  241,287,630  241,287,630 
Soneri Bank Limited 16.1.2  115,347,537  127,847,537 
The Bank of Punjab 16.1.3  52,800,000  52,800,000 
United Bank Limited 16.1.4  173,878,117  204,878,117 
Saudi Pak IAIC Limited 16.1.5  251,901,132  262,122,917 
Saudi Pak IAIC Limited 16.1.6  247,309,302  306,567,363 
Pak China Investment Company Limited 16.1.7  439,700,531  474,700,531 
JS Bank Limited 16.1.8  69,000,000  - 

1,591,224,249 1,670,204,095 

16.1.1 The term finance facility approved by National Bank of Pakistan under State Bank of Pakistan’s 
Scheme of Refinancing for Storage of Agriculture Produce (FFSAP, vide SBP SMEFD Circular 
# 08/2010)  is secured by the way of (i) First JPP Charge up to Rs. 661 million on fixed 
assets of the company by way of hypothecation of machinery and mortgage (ii) 1% notional 
registered of Rs. 6.61 million for marking lien of security trustee and (iii) Personal Guarantees 
of sponsoring directors. Mark-up is applicable @ 3 Month KIBOR + 2.50% per annum 
payable on quarterly basis. The facility had original maturity in year 2021. however it has 
been requested NBP to extend the repayment period for further six years. The restructuring 
proposal for outstanding debt is in process at the bank.

16.1.2 It represents term loan sanctioned by the Soneri Bank Limited. The facility is secured by way 
of (i) First JPP Charge up to Rs. 386.14 million on fixed assets of the company (ii) 1% notional 
registered of Rs. 5.27 million for marking lien and (iii) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring 
directors. The facility having original maturity in December 2025 has been restructured till 
June 2029. Mark-up is chargeable at the bank’s Cost of Funds; it is payable in eight equal 
quarterly instalments starting from September 2027 to June 2029.

16.1.3 It represents term finance facility approved by The Bank of Punjab “BOP” for the tenor of 
six years. The facility was repayable in twenty equal quarterly instalments ending on 31-03-
2020. The limit is secured by way of (i) JPP Charge up to Rs.241 million on land, building and 
machinery installed at company’s foods processing plant located at Mauza Jumber Khurd, 
District Kasur (ii) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors. Mark-up rate is 6 months 
KIBOR + 1.75% payable at quarterly basis. An amount of Rs. 53.8 million on account of 
principal is over due as at reporting date. The restructuring request for the existing exposure 
is under consideration at the bank.
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16.1.4 The loan approved by United Bank Limited “UBL”  is secured by way of (i) JPP Charge of 
Rs. 334 million on fixed assets including land, building, plant & machinery of the company 
(ii) Exclusive charge of Rs.267 million over a poultry farm measuring 1193K-10M located 
at Mauza Hadbast Chak no. 14, Rakh Haiderabad, Tehsil Mankeera (Bhakkar) owned by 
Grand Parent Poultry Pvt. Limited, (iii) Corporate Guarantee of Big Feed Pvt. Limited, a sister 
concern and (iv) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors. 

The loan carries markup at UBL’s Cost of Funds and has final settlement in December 2027. 
All markup would be paid in equal quarterly instalments in last year of the tenor. 

16.1.5 This represents Term Facility amounting to Rs.500 million (Facility I) from Saudi Pak Industrial 
and Agricultural Investment Company Limited “SAPICO” which is secured by way of (i) 
ranking charge of Rs. 667 million over fixed assets of the company (ii) 1st exclusive charge 
of Rs. 294 million over the properties located at Ahmed Block, New Garden Town Lahore 
owned by group companies i.e. Grand Parent Poultry Pvt. Limited, Big Bird Poultry Breeders 
Pvt. Limited and Big Feed Pvt. Limited, and (iii) Personal guarantees of all the directors. 

As per fresh restructuring offer letter dated June 20, 2024; principal amount of both the 
facilities is payable till October 31, 2024 whereas the mark-up would be settled in eight equal 
quarterly instalments starting from December 31, 2025 to June 30, 2029. 

16.1.6 The Company availed Long Term Finance amounting to Rs. 350 million (Facility II) from 
SAPICO which is secured by way of (i) 1st exclusive charge over land, building, plant and 
machinery of Raiwind farm (owned by Big Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Limited) measuring area 
163K-17M situated at Mauza Rakh Jodhu Dheer, Tehsil & District Lahore and (ii) Ranking 
Charge of Rs. 467 million over current assets of the company. 

As per fresh restructuring offer letter dated June 20, 2024; principal amount of both the 
facilities is payable till October 31, 2024 whereas the mark-up would be settled in eight equal 
quarterly instalments starting from December 31, 2025 to June 30, 2029. 

16.1.7 The term finance facility of Rs. 475 million had been approved by Pak China Investment 
Company Limited “PCICL” for the tenor of five years including grace period of eighteen 
months. It is secured against (i) 1st SECP Charge of Rs. 633.33 million and token mortgage 
of Rs. 0.10 million over a poultry Farm measuring 1289K-16M situated at Mouza Gandakas, 
Tehsil Pindi Gheb, Attock owned by Big Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Limited, a sister concern 
(ii) Ranking charge of Rs. 633.33 over all present and future fixed assets of the company. 
(iii) Corporate Guarantees of associate concerns i.e. Big Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Limited 
and Big Feed Pvt. Limited and (iv) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors. The facility 
originally was repayable in 14 equal quarterly instalments and carried Mark-up rate is 3 
months KIBOR + 2.5% payable at quarterly basis.

In October 2019, PCICL approved extension in repayment tenor of the limit up to nine 
years (inclusive grace period against principal and markup for 3.5 years commencing from 
first disbursement date i.e. 16.10.2017). After restructuring, the facility is repayable in 22 
equal quarterly instalments starting from October 2021 and approved deferment of mark 
up payment for 1 year ending on 16.10.2020. The facility carries new pricing at 3 months 
KIBOR + 2% p.a.
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16.1.8 This represent the restructuring of a long-term loan facility, transitioning from a running 
finance facility originally amounting to PKR 100 million, In the final settlement, a company 
TDR of PKR 30 million was applied to the deferred amount, leaving a balance of PKR 70 
million, which has been restructured into a long-term finance arrangement.
The principal of PKR 70 million will be repaid in 20 quarterly step-up instalments, as detailed 
in the repayment schedule provided with the Facility Offer Letter (FOL). Interest will be 
calculated based on the bank’s cost of funds, currently at 11.84%, with a grace period of 
three years. The markup for the first three years will be deferred and repaid in equal quarterly 
instalments over the last two years. The loan is secured by a joint pari passu charge of PKR 
100 million over the company’s present and future current assets, a ranking charge on fixed 
assets valued at PKR 134 million, and personal guarantees from all directors.

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

16.2 From Islamic Banks

Dubai Islamic Bank 16.2.1  150,250,000  187,250,000 
Askari Islamic Bank 16.2.2  179,840,000  190,840,000 
MCB Islamic Bank 16.2.3  194,700,000  200,000,000 

 524,790,000  578,090,000 

16.2.1 This represents Shirkat ul Melk Cum facility sanctioned by Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan 
Limited that had been converted from outstanding exposure of short term borrowings 
(wakalah istithmar). It is secured against (i) Token Registered Mortgage of Rs.100,000/- and 
remaining by way of Equitable Mortgage of the property measuring 214K-19M situated at 
Hadbast Mauza Jamber Khurd, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur owned by Mr. M. Ahmad Kamal 
S/o. M. Mustafa Kamal, the director of the Company (ii) Ranking charge of Rs.534 million 
over Current Assets of the Company and (iii) Personal Guarantees of sponsoring directors.

The facility had final maturity in December 2025. In May 2024 the company signed a 
settlement agreement with the bank for resetting the terms of outstanding debt. As per 
agreement; the bank has approved extension in maturity till April 2028. The debt shall be 
paid in monthly instalments and profit chargeable at the bank’s Cost of Funds shall be paid 
in last two years of the tenor. 

16.2.2 The Diminishing Musharakah Facility sanctioned by Askari Bank Limited is secured by way 
of (i) Token Registered Mortgage of Rs. 0.10 million and remaining equitable mortgage over 
a property (poultry farm) measuring 1,184K-08M situated at Chak no.3, Rakh Mankira, Tehsil 
Mankira, District Bhakkar owned by M/s. Grand Parent Poultry Pvt. Limited, a sister concern 
(ii) Ranking charge of Rs. 533.34 million over current assets of the company and (iii)  Personal 
Guarantees of sponsoring directors. 

In January 2024, the bank approved extension in repayment tenor till June 2028. The facility 
is repayable in eighteen quarterly instalments started from March 2024. Profit at the bank’s 
Cost of Funds is payable quarterly in last two years of the tenor. 
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16.2.3 The “Diminishing Musharaka” facility approved by MCB Islamic Bank Limited “MIB” is 
secured by way of (i) JPP Charge of Rs. 267 million on all present & future fixed assets of the 
foods processing plant located at Mauza Jumber, Tehsil Pattoki District Kasur (ii) Personal 
Guarantees of sponsoring directors. (iii) Corporate guarantees of Big Feed (Pvt.) Limited, 
Grand Parent Poultry (Pvt.) Limited and Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Limited. The facility 
carries profit rate at RTK plus 1% p.a.

As per settlement agreement executed in May 2024; the facility has been restructured till 
December 2028 and profit would be charged at the bank’s Cost of Funds. The facility is 
repayable in twenty quarterly instalments started from June 2024.

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

17 DEFERRED MARKUP

Deferred markup  690,347,768  265,288,126 
Less: current maturity  -    (26,134,665)
Long portion of deferred markup  690,347,768  239,153,460 

18 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation 18.1  503,450,223  730,871,525 
 503,450,223  730,871,525 

18.1 Deferred taxation
The liability for deferred taxation comprises 
temporary differences relating to:
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,377,503,280 1,366,760,832 
Retirement benefit  (35,475,991)  (26,152,703)
Business losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation  (571,357,592)  (486,045,813)
Allowance for expected credit losses  (45,379,201)  (29,630,094)
Minimum tax and alternate corporate tax  (203,670,586)  -   
Others provisions  (18,169,687)  (94,060,696)

 503,450,223  730,871,526 

18.2 Reconciliation of deferred tax

Opening deferred tax liability  730,871,525  814,619,796 
Closing deferred tax liability  503,450,223  730,871,525 
Deferred tax attributed to other
comprehensive income  -    -   

 (227,421,302)  (83,748,271)

19 EMPLOYEE’S BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Retirement benefits - staff gratuity  122,331,005  90,181,735 
19.1  122,331,005  90,181,735 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

19.1 Changes in present value of defined
benefit obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligation  90,181,735  78,110,372 
Expenses to be charged to P&L  31,020,151  22,641,960 
Remeasurements chargeable in other com-
prehensive income

 703,000  (360,451)

Benefits paid  (6,160,977)  (10,210,146)
Net liability transferred  6,587,096  -   
Present value of defined benefit obligation  122,331,005  90,181,735 

19.1.1 Expenses to be charged to P&L

Current service cost  19,737,872  15,610,306 
Interest cost on defined benefits obligation  11,282,279  7,031,654 

 31,020,151  22,641,960 

19.1.2 Total remeasurements chargeable in other 
comprehensive income

Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial 
assumptions

 (4,932,230)  38,366 

Experience adjustments  5,635,230  (398,817)
 703,000  (360,451)

19.1.3 Significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for interest cost in P&L 
charge

16.25% 13.25%

Discount rate used for the year end obligation 14.75% 16.25%
Weighted average annual salary increase 9% 12%
Average duration of the defined benefit obli-
gation 8 Years 8 Years
Estimated expense charged to profit and loss 
for next financial years  35 million  28 million 

19.1.4 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined 
benefit obligation

Discount rate + 100 bps  96,263,099  67,628,866 
Discount rate - 100 bps  113,445,576  79,095,229 
Salary increase + 100 bps  113,691,182  79,289,067 
Salary increase - 100 bps  95,896,163  67,357,375 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

19.1.5 Distribution of timing of benefit payments 

Years
1  15,637,541  12,355,576 
2  15,596,268  12,519,068 
3  15,440,671  12,539,918 
4  15,694,320  12,551,841 
5  16,415,298  12,957,465 
6 to 10  105,558,177  93,850,628 
11 and above 2,961,718,298 3,146,253,745 

19.1.6 Risk associated with scheme

Mortality risks

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect 
is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risks

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. 
The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with age, service and the entitled benefits of 
the beneficiary.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we 
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation 
and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.  

20 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Short term borrowings-secured  189,249,213  341,528,382 

20.1 Facilities have been obtained from various conventional banks under mark-up arrangements 
against sanctioned limit. Such facilities have been obtained at mark-up rates ranging from 
22.96% to 24.53% ( 2023: 16.40% to 24.20%) per annum, payable monthly/quarterly on the 
balance outstanding as per agreement. The facilities are secured against ranking/ exclusive/ 
joint parri passu charges over present and future movable/ immovable assets, hypothecation 
of current assets and personal guarantees of directors.
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors  605,343,396  541,488,132 
Accrued expenses  67,313,286  57,717,579 
Sales tax payable  6,004,937  3,061,658 
Advance from customers  -    6,139,360 
Income tax payable  94,532,020  -   
Workers’ (profit) participation fund  45,401,516  -   
Workers’ welfare fund  18,123,325  870,749 

 836,718,481  609,277,477 

22 ACCRUED AND DEFERRED MARK-UP 

Accrued mark-up  537,572,263  723,859,810 

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingencies

Recovery suit no: COS.NO: 59647/2022 was filed by Pak China Investment Company Limited 
before Lahore High Court Lahore on 22.07.2022 against the company. The Company’s case 
is strong, and there is a high probability of it being successful. The case is currently pending, 
with the last hearing held on July 18, 2024.

23.2 Commitments

23.2.1 The company has opened letters of credit for import of spare parts and ingredients Rs.27.6 
million (2023: 68.9 million).

23.2.2 Bank guarantee given by bank on the behalf of company: 12.99 million (2023: 12.99 million).

23.2.3 The company has given corporate guarantees in favor of its associated companies of Rs. 
257 million (2023: 257 million).

23.2.4 The amount of future payments under Ijarah and the period in which these payments will 
become due are as follows;

Not later than one year  19,088,606  17,642,151 
Later than one but not later than five year  46,840,790  59,435,177 

 65,929,396  77,077,328 

Ijarah Facility (Leasing) for purchase of commercial & non commercial vehicles amounting to 
Rs. 100 million for the tenor of five years has been approved by Meezan Bank Limited. The 
rentals against each transaction is payable on monthly basis.

It is secured by the way of,
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(a)  Security deposits up to 15% of the value of non commercial and 10% for commercial 
vehicles, (b)  Ownership of Ijarah assets in favor of the bank, (c)  A ranking charge amounting 
Rs. 134 million over immovable & movable assets of the company, (d)  Personal guarantee 
of all the sponsoring directors.

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

24 SALES - NET

Local sales 7,670,339,364 5,855,276,470 
Less: sales tax  (828,060,319)  (43,739,625)
Export sale  367,588,865  250,325,492 

7,209,867,910 6,061,862,337 

25 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed  25.1 4,454,405,039 4,113,460,743 
Salaries, wages and benefits 25.2  427,268,611  375,289,450 
Packing material  173,049,554  112,261,431 
Freight, loading and unloading  46,325,057  48,058,407 
Power and fuel  595,073,924  564,679,626 
Insurance expense  4,904,076  8,473,847 
Rent, rate and taxes  40,575,730  9,146,640 
Watch and ward  17,149,324  16,706,732 
Miscellaneous  8,168,981  10,018,247 
Repair and maintenance  58,335,227  24,139,114 
Depreciation 4.1  183,779,420  309,140,702 

6,009,034,944 5,591,374,937 
Increase in finished goods  (386,701,981)  (100,105,325)

5,622,332,963 5,491,269,612 

25.1 Opening raw material  108,333,246  60,498,604 
Purchases made during the year 4,442,257,314 4,161,295,384 
Less: Closing raw material  96,185,521  108,333,246 
Raw material consumed 4,454,405,039 4,113,460,742 

25.2 Salaries, wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 15.9 million (2023: Rs. 11.3 
million).

26 DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1  65,804,864  62,308,696 
Advertisement  17,818,496  12,208,228 
Freight outward  78,763,741  66,155,917 
Rent, rate and taxes  17,007,704  9,088,001 
Ijarah rental  18,312,697  19,055,403 
Other selling expenses  106,550  48,136 
Depreciation 4.1  6,970,338  3,658,870 

 204,784,390  172,523,251 

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 5.7 million (2023: Rs. 3.3 
million).
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

27 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1  60,335,663  41,193,113 
Printing & stationary  5,726,632  5,006,840 
Rent, rate and taxes  2,388,455  3,122,236 
Insurance  1,278,722  -   
Communications  5,248,089  4,233,903 
Entertainment  3,870,239  3,563,508 
Vehicles running and maintenance  23,255,986  19,244,384 
Travelling and conveyance  15,981,393  15,723,782 
Legal and professional charges  17,035,491  12,823,674 
Repair and maintenance  3,114,769  2,669,016 
Auditors’ remuneration 27.2  1,427,260  1,079,074 
Miscellaneous  9,980,648  9,537,027 
Depreciation 4.1  2,212,840  4,167,088 

 151,856,186  122,363,643 

27.1 Salaries wages and benefits includes defined benefit plan of Rs. 9 million (2023: Rs. 4 million).

27.2 Auditor’s remuneration

Audit fee  1,365,000  1,016,814 
Reimbursable expenses  62,260  62,260 

 1,427,260  1,079,074 

28 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers’ (profit) participation fund  45,401,516  -   
Workers’ welfare fund  17,252,576  -   
Expected credit losses of trade debts  54,307,265  39,921,691 
Exchange loss  5,600,000  -   

 122,561,357  39,921,691 

29 OTHER INCOME

From financial assets
Interest on bank deposits  11,055,519  5,762,523 
From non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of assets  5,007,226  27,378,279 
Miscellaneous income  65,126,966  38,683,305 

 81,189,711  71,824,107 

30 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings  20,028,010  57,275,062 
Mark-up on long term financing  320,008,502  402,909,105 
Bank charges  4,109,978  1,996,144 

 344,146,490  462,180,311 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

31 LEVIES

Levies  3,778,958  46,155,043 
 3,778,958  46,155,043 

31.1 This represents final tax under section 154 ( 2023: minimum tax and final tax under sections 
113 and 154) of income tax ordinance 2001, representing levies in terms of requirements of 
IFRIC 21/IAS  37.

32 TAXATION

Current tax  230,809,840  -   
Deferred tax  (227,421,302)  (83,748,270)

 3,388,538  (83,748,270)

33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit/(Loss) before taxation  845,376,235  (154,572,064)
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation  192,962,598  316,966,660 
Finance cost  344,146,490  462,180,311 
Interest on bank deposits  (11,055,519)  (5,762,522)
other adjustments  963,460  -   
Provision for workers’ profit participation fund  45,401,516  -   
Profit on disposal of fixed assets  (5,007,226)  (27,378,279)
Provision for staff gratuity  31,020,151  22,641,960 
Provision for expected credit loss  54,307,265  39,921,691 
Provision for workers’ welfare fund  17,252,576  -   

 669,991,311  808,569,822 
Income before working capital changes 1,515,367,546  653,997,758 

Effect on cash flow due to working capital 
changes:
Decrease in stores and spares  31,292,689  17,420,302 
Increase in stock in trade  (372,099,314)  (159,104,990)
Increase in trade debts  (151,757,410)  (14,786,577)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances  115,301,142  (57,603,120)
Increase in deposits and prepayments  (7,768,950)  (6,729,406)
Increase in trade and other payable  70,254,892  151,748,056 

 (314,776,951)  (69,055,733)
1,200,590,596  584,942,025 

33.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 13  157,442,171  30,778,205 
Short term investment 12  6,200,000  42,600,000 

 163,642,171  73,378,205 
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35 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per 
share of the Company, basic is computed as follows:
Profit / (loss) after tax for the year Rupee  838,208,739  (116,978,837)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year Number  298,905,786  297,093,000 
Earning / (loss) per share Rupee  2.80  (0.39)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value. 
Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing 
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process 
of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to 
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from 
the financial instruments it holds.

The management oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The management is assisted in its oversight role 
by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management 
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the management.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working 
capital with a view to maintain an appropriate various sources of finance to minimize risk.

36.1 Market risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies.

36.2 Currency risk

2024 2023
----------Rupees----------

Short term 
borrowings

Long Term 
Financing

34 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows 
arising from financing activities

Balance as at July 01, 2023  341,528,382  2,248,294,095 
Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Repayment and restructruing-net  -    (132,279,846)
Disbursment during the year  -    -   
Short term borrowings net  (152,279,169)  -   

Changes from Financing Cash Flows  (152,279,169)  (132,279,846)

Balance as at June 30, 2024  189,249,213  2,116,014,249 
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Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from 
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies.

The company is not exposed to currency risks since there are no financial instruments at 
the reporting date whose future cash flows is dependent upon changes in foreign exchange 
rates.

36.3 Interest rate risk

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value or future value cash flows of the financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company’s exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company’s long term and short 
term financing arrangement at floating interests rates to meet its business operations and 
working capital requirements. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably 
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables hold constant:

Effect on profit / (loss)
before tax

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

 Increase / Decrease in basis points  
+100  23,052,635  25,898,225 
-100  (23,052,635)  (25,898,225)

36.4 Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial 
instruments traded in the market. 

36.5 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial 
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk arises from deposits 
with banks, trade and other receivables. 

36.6 Exposure to credit risk
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The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

Trade debts 1,003,306,138  905,855,993 
Loans and advances  684,000  584,000 
Deposits and prepayments  31,469,707  33,329,807 
Bank balances  153,862,612  29,089,183 

1,189,322,458  968,858,983 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year 
is as follows;

Balance at July 1st  102,172,736  62,251,044 
Charge for the period  54,307,265  39,921,692 
Bad debts written off  -    -   

 156,480,002  102,172,736 

The allowance in respect of trade receivables are used to record impairment losses unless 
the Company is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the 
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the financial asset directly.

Trade debts are essentially due from local customers . The Company does not expect these 
counterparties  to fail to meet their obligations. The majority of sales to the Company’s 
customers are made on specific terms. Customer credit risk is managed by subject to the 
Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk 
management. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal rating criteria. 
Credit quality of the customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding 
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

36.7 Credit quality of major financial assets

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in highly liquid securities and 
only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1 and A. Given these high credit 
ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

36.8 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represent the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securi-
ties, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due 
to the dynamic nature of the company’s business, the Board maintains flexibility in funding by 
maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 For the year ended June 30, 2024



Big Bird Foods Limited66

Management monitors the forecasts of the company’s cash and cash equivalents on the 
basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out in accordance with practice and 
limits set by the company. The company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting 
cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities, monitor-
ing balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements, and 
maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. 
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows as the im-
pact of discounting is not significant.

Carrying 
amount

Less than one 
year

More than one 
year

Financial liabilities as at
30th June 2024
Trade and other payables  672,656,682  672,656,682  -   
Accrued and deferred mark-up  1,227,920,031  690,347,768  537,572,263 
Short term borrowing - secured  189,249,213  189,249,213  -   
Long term financing  2,116,014,249  1,317,507,615  798,506,635 

 4,205,840,175  2,869,761,277  1,336,078,898 

Financial liabilities as at
30th June 2023
Trade and other payables  599,205,710  599,205,710  -   
Accrued and deferred mark-up  963,013,270  239,153,460  723,859,810 
Short term borrowing - secured  341,528,382  341,528,382  -   
Long term financing  2,248,294,095  1,230,973,206  1,017,320,889 

 4,152,041,458  2,410,860,759  1,741,180,699 

37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investment in a subsidiary are 
carried at cost. The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate their fair value.

2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

37.1 Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company hold the following financial 
instruments measured at amortized cost, as at 
balance sheet date;

Trade debts 1,003,306,138  905,855,993 
Loans and advances  684,000  584,000 
Deposits and prepayments  31,469,707  33,329,807 
Short term investment  6,230,575  43,316,882 
Cash and bank balances  157,442,171  30,778,205 

1,199,132,592 1,013,864,887 
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2024 2023
Note   ----------- Rupees----------- 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables  672,656,682  599,205,710 
Accrued and deferred mark-up  537,572,263  723,859,810 
Employee benefit obligation  122,331,005  90,181,735 
Short term borrowings  189,249,213  341,528,382 
Long term borrowings 2,116,014,249 1,670,204,095 

3,637,823,412 3,424,979,733 

37.2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements 
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at 
each reporting date.

Financial Instruments carried at fair value are categorized as follow:

Level 1: Quoted market price.

Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observables) - (Nil)

Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables) - (Nil)

37.3 Capital risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using  debt to equity and gearing ratio. 

Interest bearing bank borrowings 2,305,263,462 2,589,822,478 
Total Equity 5,341,352,414 4,509,470,311 
Debt to Equity ratio 43.2% 57.4%
Gearing ratio 30.1% 36.5%

 Birds (million) 

38 PLANT PRODUCTION CAPACITY (ANNUAL)

Capacity  38.4  38.4 
Birds processed / sold  7.35  6.70 
Percentage of total capacity 19% 17%

38.1 Capacity is calculated on the basis of slaughtering of 6,000 birds per hour.

38.2 The Company operated the plant considering the market demand and supply of the products.
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41 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees  423  380 
Average number of employees during the year  402  399 

39.2 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have 
arrangement /agreement in place.

Name Relationship  Shareholding

Big Feed (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of 
common directorship

Nil

Big Bird Poultry Breeders (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of 
common directorship

Nil

Grand Parent Poultry (Pvt.) Ltd. Associated company by virtue of 
common directorship

Nil

The Company does not hold any share in the above mentioned companies.

40 Remuneration of chief executive, directors and executives

Description 2024 2023

Director Executives Director Executives

Basic Salary  11,628,384 27,236,938  6,426,000 16,993,654 

House rent  5,232,773 12,256,623  2,891,700 7,647,167 

Medical  1,162,838 2,723,713  642,600 1,699,380 

Total  18,023,995  42,217,274  9,960,300  26,340,201 

Number of persons 4 15 1 12 

No remuneration is being withdrawn by other directors.

39 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (ASSOCIATES)

39.1 Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have 
been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Name Nature of Transactions 2024 2023
-------Rupees-------

Grand Parent Poultry (Pvt.) Ltd. Rent of Office  924,000  924,000 

Remuneration of key management is disclosed in note # 40
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42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the company in 
their meeting held on October 03, 2024.

43 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comparative figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison. 
However, no significant rearrangements have been made in these financial statements except as 
disclosed below.

Capital work in progress Rs 122.3 million has classified under property plant and equipment and 
diminishing musharika  Finance Rs 255.1 million has been classified under long term financing, 
These classification has no effect on profit or loss.

44 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless otherwise stated.
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 For the year ended June 30, 2024

CEO/Director
Muhammad Mustafa Kamal

Director
Abdul Karim

Chairman/Director
Abdul Basit

Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ali Ahsen
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PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Share bHolding

No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

1 1 32680230 32680230

1 32680231 107943790 75263560

1 107943791 186178280 78234490

1 186178281 252529050 66350770

1 252529051 276296490 23767440

1 276296491 279267420 2970930

1 279267421 297093000 17825580

7  297093000 

Sr. No. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares Held Percentage

Mr. Abdul Basit  32,680,230  11.00 

Mr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal  75,263,560  25.33 

Mr. Abdul Karim  78,234,490  26.33 

Mr. Salman Basit  66,350,770  22.33 

Mr. Mohammad Ahmad Kamal  23,767,440  8.00 

Mrs. Saadia Karim  2,970,930  1.00 

Mr. Muhammad Aleem  17,825,580  6.00 

Total 297,093,000 100%

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that 13th Annual General Meeting of Big Bird Foods Limited will be held on October 28, 2024 
at 10:30 am, at Park Lane Hotel, 107 – B3 – MM Alam Road, Gulberg III, Lahore, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on October 28, 2023. 
2.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company For the year ended June 30, 

2024 together with the Auditors’ and Directors’ Report thereon.
3.	 To re-appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending on June 30, 2025 and to fix their remuneration. The 

Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company has proposed re-appointment of 
M/s Abdul Khaliq & Co. (Chartered Accountant) as external auditors on same remuneration.

4.	 To elect ten (10) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Boad of Directors in their meeting pursuant to requisition 
from shareholder under section 162 of the Companies Act, 2017 for holding of fresh election of directors of Big 
Bird Foods Limited for the next term of three years commencing October 28, 2024.

	
	 The following are the retiring Directors; 

	 1.	 Mr. Abdul Basit			 
	 2.	 Mr. Muhammad Mustafa Kamal
	 3.	 Mr. Abdul Karim
	 4.	 Mrs. Saadia Karim
	 5.	 Mr. Muhammad Aleem
	 6.	 Mr. Tariq Hamid
	 7.	 Mr. Muhammad Tabbassum Munir

	 The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

	
SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.	 To receive, consider and approve the circulation/ transmission of Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
through QR enabled code and weblink, pursuant to the S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 issued by 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and to consider, if deem fit, to pass with or without any 
amendment/modification the following resolution as ordinary resolution. 

	 “RESOLVED THAT, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for circulating/ transmitting of 
Annual Audited Financial Statements and other related documents (included in Annual Report) along with Notice 
of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through QR enabled code and weblink instead of CD/ DVD/ USB.

	 RESOLVED THAT, in case a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and/ or notice of AGM of the Company 
are desired by any member, a specific request for the same will be made.

	 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Company Secretary be and are hereby 
authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and ancillary thereto as may be 
required or expedient to give effect to the spirit and intent of the above resolution.”

6.	 To consider and pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a special resolution for replacing 
Article 45 of the Articles of Association of the Company with the following,

	 The remuneration of a Directors including Independent, Non-Executive & Executive Directors shall from time to 
time be determined by the Company in the Board Meeting subject to the provision of the Act.    

	 The Board confirms that the proposed alterations are in line with the applicable provisions of the law and regulatory 
framework to the best of their knowledge and belief.

7.	 To consider and, if thought fit, approve “Directors Remuneration Policy”, for the Chairman and other Non-
Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, as approved and recommended by the Board of Directors 
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of the Company and in this connection to pass the following resolution as ordinary resolutions, with or without 
modifications. 

	 RESOLVED THAT the “Directors Remuneration Policy” for the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors, 
including Independent Directors, as approved and recommended by the Board of Directors be and is hereby 
confirmed and approved.

8.	 To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with related parties for the financial 
year ending June 30, 2025 by passing the following special resolution with or without modifications:

	 RESOLVED THAT, the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve the transactions to be 
conducted with related parties on case-to-case basis for the financial year ending June 30, 2025;

									         BY ORDER OF THE BOARD		
								      

							     
	
									         Muhammad Riaz	
									         Company Secretary	   	
Lahore, 
Dated: October 7, 2024

NOTES

1.	 Book Closure:
	 The share transfer books of the Company will be closed from October 22, 2024 to October 28, 2024 (both days 

inclusive). Transfer requests received at the Office of the Share Registrar of the Company, M/s Digital Custodian 
Company Limited Pardesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi at the close of business on October 21, 2024 will 
be treated in time for the purpose of attendance of AGM and as applicable

2.	 Appointment of Proxies:

i)	 Members entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint another member as his/her Proxy to attend, speak 
and vote at the AGM on his/her behalf.

ii)	 The instrument appointing Proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a 
notarized/attested copy of power of attorney must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not 
later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM. A member cannot appoint more than one proxy. Form of Proxy is 
being mailed to shareholders.

3.	 Participation in the AGM through Video link Facility

i)	 Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through online facility are hereby requested to get themselves 
registered with the Company Secretary not later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM (i.e. by October 25, 
2024, 11:00 am) with the subject “Registration for the BBFL AGM” through an email corporate@bigbirdgroup.
com.pk along with a valid scanned copy of their CNIC.

	 Shareholders are advised to provide the following particulars,

Name of the 
member

CNIC No. CDC Account 
No./Folio No.

Cell Number Email Address No. of shares

	 The details of the electronic facility (video-link and the log in credentials) will be sent to the interested shareholders, 
at their provided email addresses. The login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the commencement of 
AGM, enabling the participants to join the meeting after the identification and verification process.
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	 The shareholders may submit their respective questions/comments/suggestions along with their Name and Folio 
Number on the email address, provided above; ahead of or during the AGM.

4.	 Change in Address

	 Shareholders are requested to notify the Company’s Share Registrar if there is any change in their registered 
postal addresses.

5.	 Election of Directors:

A.	 Any person who seeks to contest the election for the office of Director shall, whether he is a retiring director or 
otherwise, file following documents/ information with the Company at its Registered Office, no later than fourteen 
(14) days before the date of meeting:

	 a.	 Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for election of Directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2017.

	 b.	 Consent to act as Director under section 167 of the Companies Act, 2017 on “Appendix to Form-9” as 
prescribed in the Companies Regulations, 2024, along with copy of attested copy of CNIC, NTN or Passport.

	 c.	 A detailed profile of the Candidate including his/her office address for placement onto the Company’s website 
as required under SECP’s SRO 1196(I)/ 2019 dated October 03, 2019.

	 d.	 A declaration in respect of being:

	 i.	 Compliant with all the applicable laws and regulations including without limiting the requirements of the Code 
of Corporate Governance Regulations and eligibility criteria as set out in Section 155 & Section 156 of the Act, to 
act as director of a Public Listed Company.

	 ii.	 That he/she is not ineligible to become Director of a listed company under Section 153 & 177 of the Act or 
any other applicable law.

	 e.	 Copy of valid CNIC (in case of Pakistani national)/ Passport (in case of foreign national), and NTC and Folio 
Number/CDC Investors Account No. /CDC Sub-Account No (applicable for person filing consent for the first time).

B.	 Independent Directors shall be elected through a process of Election of Directors required under section 159 
of the Companies Act, 2017. Independent Director(s) shall meet the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 as well as the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 
2018.

6.	 E-Voting/ Postal Ballot:

	 In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of Election of Directors 
and for any other agenda item subject to the requirements of Section 143 to 145 of the Companies Act, 2017, 
shareholders will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot i.e., by post or e-voting, in the 
manner and subject to conditions contained in aforesaid Regulations.

7.	 CDC Account Holders:

	 CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 of 
2000 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A.	  For Attending the AGM:

	 i.	 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her 
identity by showing his/her Original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of 
attending the meeting.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
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	 ii.	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of 
the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

	 B.	 For Appointing Proxies:

	 i.	 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the Proxy form 
as per the above requirement.

	 ii.	 The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the Form.

	 iii.	 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the Proxy shall be furnished with the 
Proxy form.

	 iv.	 The Proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the AGM.
	 v.	 In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution /Power of Attorney with specimen signature 

shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the Proxy Form to the Company.

8.	 Submission of copy of CNIC/NTN (Mandatory)

	 Individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the Company/ Share Registrar, 
are once again requested to send their CNIC (copy) at the earliest directly to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s 
Digital Custodian Company Limited - Pardesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi. Corporate entities are requested 
to provide their National Tax Number (NTN). Please also give Folio Number with the copy of CNIC/NTN details.

9.	  Availability and Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements:

	 a.	 In accordance with the provision of Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, the audited financial statements 
of the Company For the year ended June 30, 2024 are available on the Company’s website {https://bigbirdfoods.
com/}. 

	 b.	 The Annual Report shall be circulated via email to those shareholders whose email addresses are present in 
the records/database of the Share Registrar.

	 c.	 In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide S.R.O. 389 (I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, those 
shareholders who desire to receive a hard copy of the Annual Financial Statements are advised to give their formal 
consent along with their valid email address on the “Standard Request Form”.

	 d.	 For convenience of shareholders, the “Standard Request Form” for provision of Annual Audited Financial 
Statements is available on the Company’s website [https://www.bigbirdfoods.com/].

	 e.	 Any shareholder requiring a printed copy of the Annual Audited Financial Statements shall be provided with 
a copy free of cost within seven working days of receipt of such request.

10.	 Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

	 Section 72 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017, provides that every existing company shall be required to replace 
its physical shares with book-entry form, in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the 
SECP, within a period not exceeding four (4) years of the date of the promulgation of the Act. Further, SECP vide 
its letter dated 26 March 2022 has directed listed companies to pursue their shareholders holding securities 
in physical form to convert the same in the book-entry form. To ensure compliance with the aforementioned 
provision and to benefit by holding securities in book-entry form, including safe custody, all shareholders holding 
physical shareholdings are again encouraged to open CDC sub-account or Investor account and convert their 
shares into book-entry form, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Statement of Material Facts: 

1.	 Under section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017

	 As per Section 166 of Companies Act, 2017 a statement of material facts is annexed to the notice of the Annual 
General Meeting called for the purpose of fresh election of directors which shall indicate the justification for 
choosing the appointee for appointment as independent director. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
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	 Being a listed company, Big Bird Foods Limited is required to have independent directors on its Board in 
accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. Accordingly, the 
company shall ensure that Independents Director are elected in accordance with the procedures for election of 
directors laid down in section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017. After the contestants file their notice / intention 
to stand for election, the Company shall apply following criteria for choosing the appointee for appointment as 
Independent Director;

(i)	 Inclusion of name of independent directors in the data bank maintained by Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance (PICG) duly authorized by SECP. 

(ii)	 Respective competencies diversity, skill knowledge and experience of the election contestants shall be assessed. 
(iii)	 The company shall exercise due diligence before selecting a person from the data bank that the contestant meets 

the independent criteria as mentioned in Section 166 (2) of the Company Act, 2017. 

2. 	 Pursuant to a requisition from shareholder under Section 162 of the Companies Act, 2017 fresh election of the 
directors of Big Bird Foods Limited are being held on October 28, 2024.

	 Under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017

	 This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2024.

	 Item 5 of the agenda

	 To give effect to the Notification S.R.0. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan, consent of the members is being sought or transmission of the Annual Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company and related documents (included in the Annual Report) along with the Notice of 
General Meeting through a QR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same in CD/DVD/USB or 
in hard copies. The Company however, shall send the complete financial statements with relevant documents 
in hard copy to the shareholders, at their registered addresses, free of cost, if a request has been made by the 
member on the Standard Request Form available on the website of the Company.

	 Item 6 of the agenda

	 The Board of Directors has recommended that a special resolution for replacing Article 45 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company be passed for the remuneration of a directors including Independent, Non-Executive 
& Executive Directors shall from time to time be determined by the Company in the Board Meeting subject to the 
provision of the Act.

	 Item 7 of the agenda

	 The Board of Directors has recommended to approve “Directors Remuneration Policy” through Ordinary resolution, 
for the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors.

	 Once a Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been approved, all payments by the Company to the Directors and 
any former or future Directors must be made in accordance with that policy unless separately approved by a 
shareholder resolution.

	 Item 8 of the agenda

	 Interest of the Company, its Sponsors, and Directors in the Company:

	 The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their shareholding in 
the associated companies.

	 The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the Financial Year ending on June 
30, 2025, on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy in the normal course of business. A few of the 
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Company’s Directors may be interested in these transactions due to their common directorship in the associated/
subsidiary companies. 

	 To promote transparent business practices, transactions entered into by the Company with its related parties 
from time-to-time on case-to-case basis during the Financial Year ending on June 30, 2025, as authorized by the 
Board of Directors shall be deemed to be approved by the shareholders of the Company and these transactions 
shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting of the Company for their formal 
ratification/approval.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
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RUPEES IN ‘000’

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Operating performance

Sales  7,209,868  6,061,862  3,543,608  2,381,649  3,198,483  4,445,357  4,000,571 

Gross profit  1,587,535  570,593  101,332  4,801  42,944  89,435  853,226 

Operating profit  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other income  81,190  71,824  82,098  27,134  25,728  53,849  39,662 

Profit/(Loss) before tax  841,597  154,572)  382,665) (534,110) (829,770) (776,270)  135,325 

Profit/(Loss) after tax  838,209 (116,979)  303,048)  828,418)  588,617) (627,688)  107,020 

Total comprehensive income  837,506  (116,618)  (297,531)  2,875,405  (584,018)  (629,435)  111,022 

Earning per share (EPS)  2.80  (0.39)  (1.02)  (3.94)  (2.80)  (2.99)  0.59 

Balance Sheet

Share capital  2,989,058  2,970,930  2,970,930  2,100,000  2,100,000  2,100,000  1,800,000 

Accumulated profit/(losses)  919,201  (1,883,946)  (1,902,792)  (1,748,696)  (922,715)  (338,697)  287,465 

Non-current assets  7,601,156  7,108,458  7,411,509  7,724,426  3,529,472  3,603,883  3,684,011 

Current assets  2,735,880  2,384,179  2,236,847  2,200,325  2,145,943  2,114,762  2,672,978 

Non-current liabilities  2,114,636  2,077,528  2,996,893  2,595,993  1,633,606  1,176,707  1,514,277 

Current liabilities  2,881,048  2,905,639  2,009,375  2,497,836  2,690,252  2,640,463  2,488,776 
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I/We …………………..................................................……………………………………………………….

of ……………………………………….…………………………………………………… being a member 

of Big Bird Foods Limited hereby appoint Mr.……………………………………..……………......... another 

member of the company as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our 

behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, October 28, 2024, at 10:30 

AM at Park Lane Hotel, 107-B3, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg III, Lahore and any adjournment thereof. 

Signed ……………………………………….. day of  ..……………………………… 2024

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER

Note

1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy 

to attend and vote his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered 

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2.	 The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorized 

in writing. If a member is a corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

FORM OF PROXY

FOLIO NUMBER

…………………
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2-A Ahmad Block, New Garden Town Lahore, Pakistan
UAN:        +92-42-111-111-220
Phone:     +9242-35835373, 3587512-14
Email:       corporate@bigbirdgroup.com.pk
Website:   www.bigbirdfoods.com

Address:

Eat Well, Live Well.

Big Bird Foods Limited


